FILED DEDUIE COM AUX

NGV 12 (213

SUPREME COURT STATE OF FLORIDA TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA CLERK, SUPPLIED OF ORT

GERALDINE SEALE,

CASE NO:

96,908

Appellant,

DCA CASE NO:

98-04187

v.

LOWER COURT NO: G 98-804

EMSA CORRECTIONAL

CARE, INC.,

Appellee.

PETITIONER'S INITIAL BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

RICHARD J. MANNO, ESQ. P.O. Box 4979 Orlando, FL 32802 Counsel for Appellant/Petitioner BILL MCCABE, ESQ. 1450 West SR 434, #200 Longwood, FL 32750 Co-Counsel for Appellant/ Petitioner

This is a Petition for Discretionary Review from an Order of the Second District Court of Appeal, Lakeland, Florida, Opinion filed 9/29/99.

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The Petitioner, GERALDINE SEALE, shall be referred to herein as "Seale".

The Respondents, EMSA CORRECTIONAL CARE, INC., shall be referred to herein as "EMSA".

The Honorable Cecelia M. Moore, Circuit Judge, shall be referred to herein as the "TC" (Trial Court).

References to the Record on Appeal shall be abbreviated by the letter "V" (Volume) and followed by the applicable volume and page number.

References to the Appendix attached hereto shall be referred to by the letter "A" and followed by the applicable appendix page number. The Appendix contains the Order on Defendant's Motion for Summary Judgment dated 9/23/98, the Opinion of the First District Court of Appeal filed 9/29/99.

STATEMENT CERTIFYING SIZE AND STYLE OF FONT

The font used in this brief is 12 Point Courier New.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

On 2/26/96, SEALE transmitted a charge of discrimination against EMSA under the ADA as well as the Florida Human Rights Act to both the Florida Commission of Human Relations (FCHR) (V1-22-24) and the EEOC (V1-25-27). The FCHR acknowledged receipt of the charge of employment discrimination on 2/28/96 (V1-20). The EEOC acknowledged receipt of the charge of discrimination on 2/28/96 (V1-21).

Thereafter, on 3/19/98 SEALE filed a one count complaint in the Circuit Court of the $10^{\rm th}$ Judicial Circuit, in and for Polk County, Florida (V1-1-9). The basis of the complaint was that EMSA violated the Florida Civil Act of 1992 on the basis of handicap (V1-6-9). The Complaint also alleged compliance with all conditions precedent (V1-4), and provided inter alia, that:

"More than 180 days have passed since the Plaintiff filed her charge."" (Vl-4).

Thereafter, on 5/5/98, EMSA filed their Answer (V1-10-14), wherein they listed the following as an affirmative defense.

"Plaintiff's claims are barred by the applicable statutes of limitations." (Vl-12).

On 8/7/98, EMSA filed its Motion for Summary Judgment (V1-15-27) in the MSJ, EMSA contended the following:

"5. The one year limitations period for filing a Civil Action for employment discrimination under the Florida Civil Rights of 1992 begins to run at the expiration of the 180 day period in which the Florida Commission on Human Relations (herein after "Florida Commission) has to make a reasonable cause determination if the Florida Commission does not make a reasonable cause determination within the 180 day period. , " (V1-16).

EMSA further contended that the FCHR had 180 days from 2/28/96 in which to make a reasonable cause determination and that this 180 day period expired on 8/26/96 (V-16-17).

EMSA further contended that the FCHR did not make a reasonable cause determination by 8/26/96; thus, Seale had 1 year from 8/26/96 in which to file a civil action, pursuant to the Florida Civil Rights Act of 1992 (V1-17). That is, as argued by EMSA, that SEALE had until 8/26/97 to file this action (V1-17).

EMSA further contended that since SEALE did not file the suit until 3/19/98, she filed it outside the applicable statute of limitations and her action is time barred (Vl-17).

Thereafter on or about 9/18/98, SEALE filed a Memorandum of Law in opposition to EMSA's Motion for Summary Judgment (V1-30-77). As part of SEALE's argument, SEALE argued that the clear and plain language of <u>F.S.</u> 760.11(8) was permissive language, in that it does not require that the aggrieved person proceed under <u>F.S.</u> 760.11(4) if the Commission fails to conciliate or determine whether there is reasonable cause in any complaint within 180 days of the filing of the Complaint, but rather provide that the aggrieved person "may" proceed under 760.11(4) as if the Commission determined there was reasonable cause.

SEALE also argued that although $\underline{F.S.}$ 760.11(3) places a good faith requirement on the FCHR to make best efforts to make a determination within a 180 day period, the FCHR is not divested of jurisdiction to continue an investigation beyond the 180 days, nor

does $\underline{F.S.}$ 760.11(3) require or mandate that the complaining party commence her lawsuit within 1 year of the 181^{st} day after the charge is filed.

Following a hearing on 9/23/98, the trial court entered her Order on EMSA's Motion for Summary Judgment (V1-97, 98) (App. 1,2). In that Order the TC found as follows:

- "4. Plaintiff initially filed her charge of discrimination with both the Florida Commission and the EEOC on 2/28/96. The Florida Commission on Human Relations had 180 days from 2/28/96 in which to make a reasonable cause determination. F.S. 760.11(3)-(5) and (8)(1995); Milano v. Moldmaster, Inc., 703 So.2d 1093 (Fla. 4^{th} DCA 1997).
- 5. Plaintiff failed to file suit within the 1 year limitations. As she filed this action on 3/19/98.
- 6. Accordingly, this action is time barred. There is no genuine issue of material fact to be tried. Defendant is entitled to a judgment in its favor as a matter of law." (V1-97).

A final judgment was entered in favor of Defendant in March, 1999. We do not have a copy in our file at this time and therefore a copy is not included in the appendix.

Thereafter, SEALE appealed the trial court's dismissal of her complaint to the Second District Court of Appeal.

On 9/29/99 the Second District Court of Appeal entered a per curiam affirmance of the trial court's order (App.-4). Specifically the Second DCA's opinion states as follows:

'PER CURIAM.

Affirmed. See Joshua v. City of Gainesville, 734
So.2d 1068 (Fla. 1st DCA 1999), review granted, 735 So.2d 1285
(Fla. 1999)." (App.-4)

Thereafter, Claimant filed her Notice to Invoke Discretionary

Jurisdiction before this Honorable Court.

A more specific reference to facts will be made during Argument.

POINT ON APPEAL

Ι

WHETHER OR NOT THIS HONORABLE COURT HAS JURISDICTION TO REVIEW THE DECISION OF THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL FILED SEPTEMBER 29, 1999 ON THE GROUNDS THAT THE DECISION PASSES UPON A QUESTION CERTIFIED TO BE ONE OF GREAT PUBLIC IMPORTANCE.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

This Honorable Court has discretionary jurisdiction to review a decision of a DCA that passes upon a question certified to be of great public importance, Article V, Sec. 3(b)(4), Fla. Const., Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(v), Fla. R. App. P. In the case at bar, the sole basis of the Second DCA's opinion is based on the decision of the First District Court of Appeal in Joshua v. City of Gainesville, 734 So.2d 1068 (Fla. 1st DCA 1999). The First District Court of Appeal in Joshua v. City of Gainesville, supra, certified the exact same question in the case at bar as a question of great public importance. Since the question in Joshua v. City of Gainesville, supra, is the exact same question as exists in the case at bar, this Honorable Court has jurisdiction to decide the issue on this appeal.

ARGUMENT

Т

WHETHER OR NOT THIS HONORABLE COURT HAS JURISDICTION TO REVIEW THE DECISION OF THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL FILED SEPTEMBER 29, 1999 ON THE GROUNDS THAT THE DECISION PASSES UPON A QUESTION CERTIFIED TO BE ONE OF GREAT PUBLIC IMPORTANCE.

Article V, Sec.3(b)(4), Fla.Const. provides:

"(b)JURISDICTION - THE SUPREME COURT: . . (4) may review any decision of a District Court of Appeal that passes upon a question certified by it to be of great public importance. . . "

Additionally, Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(v) Fla. R. App. P. provides:

- "(2) <u>Discretionary</u> Jurisdiction. The discretionary jurisdiction of the Supreme Court may be sought to review the:
- (A) decisions of District Courts of Appeal that (v) pass upon a question certified to be of great public importance. . , ."

Certification by a DCA that a decision passes upon a question of great public interest is a pre-requisite to jurisdiction of the Florida Supreme Court to review on a ground of great public interest, <u>Finkelstein v. Department of Transportation</u>, 656 So.2d 921 (Fla. 1995), <u>Allstate Insurance Company v. Langston</u>, 655 So.2d 91 (Fla. 1995) at 93, fn 1.

In the case at bar, the Second District Court of Appeal affirmed the trial court's dismissal of Seale's complaint based on the First District Court of Appeal decision in Joshua v. City of Gainesville, 734 So.2d 1068 (Fla. 1st DCA 1999), review granted, 735 So.2d 1285 (Fla. 1999).

The issue in Joshua v. City of Gainesville, supra, is

v. City of Gainesville, supra, the First District Court of Appeal certified the following as a question of great public importance:

"DOES THE SECTION 760.11(5), FLORIDA STATUTES (1995), ONE YEAR STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS FOR FILING CIVIL ACTIONS "AFTER THE DATE OF DETERMINATION OF REASONABLE CAUSE BY THE COMMISSION" APPLY ALSO UPON THE COMMISSION'S FAILURE TO MAKE ANY DETERMINATION AS TO "REASONABLE CAUSE" WITHIN 180 DAYS AS CONTEMPLATED IN SECTION 760.11(8), FLORIDA STATUTES (1995), SO THAT AN ACTION FILED BEYOND THE ONE YEAR PERIOD IS TIME BARRED?" Joshua v. City of Gainesville, supra at 1071.

This Honorable Court has accepted jurisdiction based on the aforesaid question of great public importance in <u>Joshua v. City of</u> Gainesville, supra, <u>review granted</u>, 735 So.2d 1285 (Fla. 1999).

The issue in Joshua v. City of Gainesville, supra, is identical to the issue in the case at bar. The Second District Court of Appeals' affirmance based solely on Joshua v. City of Gainesville, supra, wherein the First District Court of Appeal certified the aforesaid question as one of great public importance, gives this Honorable Court jurisdiction to accept the appeal in the case at bar based upon a question of great public importance, State v. Loftin, 534 So.2d 1148 (Fla. 1988). In State v. Loftin, supra, this Honorable Court held that it had jurisdiction for review of Loftin v. State, 517 So.2d 700 (Fla. 5th DCA 1987), because the District Court issued a per curiam decision without opinion citing two cases which were pending review in this Honorable Court. In State v. Loftin, supra, and in Jollie v. State, 405 So.2d 418 (Fla. 1981), this Honorable Court held that a per curiam decision without opinion of a District Court of Appeal which cites as controlling

authority a decision that is pending review in this Court constitutes prima facie express conflict for purposes of jurisdiction.

Similarly, it is respectfully submitted that when the Second DCA issued a per curiam decision without opinion citing the case of Joshua v. City of Gainesville, supra, a case pending review in this Honorable Court, that constitutes a prima facie showing that the issue in Seale v. EMSA Correctional Care, Inc. is an issue of great public importance.

Petitioner would also respectfully submit that the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure specifically states that discretionary jurisdiction of the Supreme Court may be sought to review decisions of the District Courts of Appeal that:

"Pass upon a question certified to be of great public importance".

The issue in this case was certified to be of great public importance by the First District Court of Appeal in Joshua v. City of Gainesville, supra, the case relied upon by the Second DCA in the case at bar.

CONCLUSION

It is respectfully requested that this Honorable Court grant Petitioner's Notice to Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction, accept jurisdiction of this appeal, and direct the parties to file a Brief on the Merits.