SUPREME COURT STATE OF FLORIDA TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

FILED DEBBIE CAUSSEAUX DEC 1 3 1999

CLERK, SUPREME COURT BY_____

GERALDINE SEALE,

Appellant,

EMSA CORRECTIONAL CARE, INC.,

Appellee.

CASE NO. 96,908

DCA CASE NO. 98-04187

LOWER COURT NO. G 98-804

RESPONDENT'S ANSWER BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

JOHN M. HAMENT, ESQ. Kunkel Miller & Harnent 1800 Second Street, Suite 970 Sarasota, Florida 3423 6 Trial Counsel for Appellee/Respondent

I. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Supreme Court may not exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to review the decision of the District Court of Appeal (DCA) rendered in this case where the DCA did not certify that its decision passes upon a question of great public importance. Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(v), Fla.R.App.P. See State of Florida v. Smulowitz, 486 So.2d 587 (Fla. 1986).

Even assuming *arguendo*, that the Supreme Court may exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to review a decision of a DCA that does not certify that its decision passes upon a question of great public importance, the DCA decision in the instant case did not pass upon a question of "great public importance," in that the actual legal question presented by Petitioner in its Notice deals with an extremely narrow procedural rule, to wit, statute of limitations, with very unique facts. Nor is the interpretation of the applicable statute so complex as to make the case one of "great public importance." Nor does the fact that the question presented by Petitioner has been certified by another DCA in another case compel this Court (which has granted review of that question) to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to review the instant DCA decision, in that the

sole rationale for the other DCA's (1st) certification is inapplicable to the present case.

For these reasons, Respondent respectfully submits that this Honorable Court dismiss Petitioner's Notice invoking discretionary jurisdiction.

II. ARGUMENT

ISSUE NO. 1: THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL DID NOT CERTIFY THAT ITS DECISION PASSES UPON A QUESTION OF "GREAT PUBLIC IMPORTANCE."

The Florida Constitution and the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure, as well as case law, establish that the Supreme Court of Florida may not exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to review the decision of a District Court of Appeal (DCA) where the DCA does not certify that its decision passes upon a decision of great public importance. Fla. Const., Article V, Sec. 3(b)(4); Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(v), Fla.R.App.P.; See State of Florida v. Smulowitz, 486 So.2d 587 (Fla. 1986).

Article V, Section 3(b)(4) of the Florida Constitution states specifically:

"(b) JURISDICTION.-The supreme court:

(4) May review any decision of a district court of appeal that passes upon a question **certified by it** to be of great public importance ..." (emphasis supplied)

Without exception (to Respondent's counsel's knowledge), the Supreme Court of Florida has dismissed the Petitioner's Notice invoking discretionary jurisdiction

where the DCA decision did not certify that the decision passed upon a question of great public importance. For example, in <u>State of Florida v. Smulowitz, supra</u>, the Supreme Court of Florida dismissed the State's Notice invoking discretionary jurisdiction because the DCA did not certify that its decision on rehearing passed upon a question of great public importance. It is noteworthy, that the DCA's initial decision had certified that its decision passed upon a question of great public importance. However, the Supreme Court relinquished its jurisdiction to enable the DCA to consider a Petition for Rehearing. Finally, we note that the Supreme Court in <u>Smulowitz</u> dismissed the State's Notice invoking discretionary jurisdiction without prejudice, permitting the parties to seek discretionary review of the DCA decision on some other jurisdictional ground.

In the present case, the DCA decision does not certify that its decision passes upon a question of "great public importance." Accordingly, Respondent respectfully submits that this Court may not exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to review the DCA decision, and therefore Petitioner's Notice should be dismissed.

ISSUE NO. 2: THE DCA DECISION DID NOT PASS UPON A QUESTION OF "GREAT PUBLIC IMPORTANCE."

Petitioner urges this Court to accept jurisdiction of the DCA decision in this case based upon an uncertified question declared to be of "great public importance," but

omits completely any basis, argument or authority whatsoever supporting her contention. Instead, Petitioner merely refers to (i.e., attempts to "piggyback" on) another DCA decision, <u>Joshua v. City of Gainesville.</u> 734 So.2d 1068 (Fla. 1st DCA 1999), <u>review granted.</u> 735 So.2d 1285 (Fla. 1999), that involves dissimilar facts. Respondent respectfully submits that nothing in the record of the present case even remotely supports the assertion that the instant question is one of "great public importance" as recognized by the Supreme Court of Florida.

Indeed, the actual legal question presented by Petitioner in her Notice simply deals with the one-year statute of limitations period for filing an action under the Florida Civil Rights Act of 1992. See § 760.11(3)-(5)&(8), Fla. Stat. In other words, the legal question deals with an extremely narrow procedural rule promulgated by the Florida legislature setting forth the limitations period for filing employment discrimination actions, Even where the underlying DCA decision has in fact certified a question to be of "great public importance," the Supreme Court of Florida has consistently declined to exercise jurisdiction in cases where the certified question, like the instant one, dealt with an extremely narrow legal issue. See State of Florida v. Sowell, 734 So.2d 421 (Fla. 1999); Dade County Property Appraiser v. Lisboa, 737 So.2d 1078 (Fla. 1999). Nor can it be argued that interpretation of the applicable statute (§ 760.11(3)-(5)&(8), Fla. Stat.) is so complex as to make the case one of "great public

importance." See Everard v. State of Florida, 559 So.2d 427 (Fla. 4th DCA 1990). Nor can it be argued that the question has such widespread ramifications that it rises to the level of one of "great public importance." See Everard, supra. Nor does the present case involve any conflict between any DCA decisions which otherwise might have warranted this Court's exercising its discretionary jurisdiction. Indeed, both the DCA decision in the instant case and the DCA decision referred to by Petitioner in the Joshua case reached the same result, namely, the discrimination lawsuits had been untimely filed, i.e., outside the one-year limitations period set forth in Section 760.

In short, the question raised by Petitioner deals simply with the one-year limitations period for filing civil actions under the Florida Civil Rights Act, as promulgated by the Florida legislature, and does not exhibit any indicia whatsoever that would compel it being characterized as one of "great public importance." Therefore, even assuming *arguendo*, that this Court may exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to review a decision of a DCA that does not itself certify that it passes upon a question of great public importance, Respondent respectfully submits that Petitioner's

¹ As pointed out and discussed within Issue No. 3, Petitioner in this case, unlike the Plaintiff in <u>Joshua</u>, who is pro se, was represented by counsel during all relevant time periods. Thus, Petitioner's counsel was on notice of, and responsible for complying with the limitations period.

Notice should be dismissed in that the DCA decision did not pass upon a question of "great public importance."

ISSUE NO. 3: THE RATIONALE IN THE <u>JOSHUA</u> CASE, UPON WHICH THE FOURTH DCA RELIED, FOR CERTIFYING THE QUESTION AT ISSUE AS ONE OF "GREAT PUBLIC IMPORTANCE," IS TOTALLY LACKING IN THE INSTANT CASE.

The sole rationale in <u>Joshua</u> for the Fourth DCA's certifying the limitations period question at issue is clearly articulated in the final paragraph of the decision as follows:

"Because of the harsh result that will befall the **unwary**, **pro se claimant** who is misled by the seemingly permissive language of the Act and delays filing a civil action until after the passing of the deadline while awaiting the Commission's belated determination, we certify the following as a question of great public importance." (emphasis supplied)

It is self evident that the only reason the question was certified in the <u>Joshua</u> case was the DCA's concern for a **pro** se plaintiff who might misinterpret the statute. No such factual basis exists in the present case. On the contrary, the Petitioner in this case, to Respondent's counsel's knowledge, has been represented by counsel during all relevant time periods. Thus, in the present case, there was a "wary attorney," as opposed to an "unwary pro se claimant." Significantly, the Second DCA in this case did not certify the question at issue as one of "great public importance" notwithstanding that it was on notice of the <u>Joshua</u> case and the fact that the question had been so

certified in that case, the very case it relied upon to affirm the Circuit Court decision.

Because the rationale relied upon by the Fourth DCA in the <u>Joshua</u> case for certifying the question at issue as one of "great public importance" is lacking in the present case, Respondent respectfully submits that this Court should decline to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction as requested by Petitioner.

III. CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing, Respondent respectfully requests that this Honorable Court dismiss Petitioner's Notice to Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction and to decline jurisdiction of this case.